
 
1 of  3 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2018 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 
 

 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 1, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Old Business: 
 
1. Pass Ordinance #2932, granting a partial property tax exemption to Standard Distribution Co. for 

construction of a warehouse addition at 317 Savannah Park Drive, upon its second consideration. 
 

2. Pass Ordinance #2933, amending Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located in the southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue from A-1, Agricultural 
District, and placing the same in HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, subject to certain 
conditions, upon its second consideration. 
 

3. Pass Ordinance #2934, amending Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located at the north end of Lakeshore Drive from A-1, Agricultural District, and placing the same in 
R-1, Residence District, upon its second consideration. 
 

F. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of October 1, 2018 relative to the 

following items: 
(1) Overman Park Neighborhood Association Presentation.  
(2) North Cedar Neighborhood Association Presentation. 
(3) South Main and Greenhill Corridor Neighborhood Association Presentation. 
(4) Bills & Payroll. 
 

b. Approve the application of Community Main Street (J & M Displays) for a fireworks display 
permit for November 23, 2018. 
 

c. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Aldi Inc., 6322 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
(2) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer - renewal. 
(3) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
(4) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 



 
2 of  3 

 

(5) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - change in ownership. 
(6) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 
(7) Just Dough, 6607 University Avenue, Class B beer - new. 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Engagement Letter with The Overture 

Group, LLC to perform recruitment services relative to the position of City Engineer. 
 

b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Bookkeeping Services 
with Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc. 
 

c. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow property located 
at 804-804 1/2 Seerley Boulevard. 
 

d. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow property located 
at 216 Iowa Street. 
 

e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment to Agreement for 
Animal Services with the Cedar Bend Humane Society relative to pet licensing. 
 

f. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Lease of Artwork with 
Dallas Guffey relative to placement of a sculpture in the City right-of-way at 311 Main Street, 
as requested by the Cedar Falls Public Art Committee and the Art & Culture Board. 
 

g. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Teamsters Union, Local No. 238 relative to earning compensatory time. 
 

h. Resolution approving and accepting a Partial Release of Real Estate Mortgage, a Warranty 
Deed and a Temporary Easement, in conjunction with the Center Street Recreational Trail 
Project. 
 

i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of one Owner Purchase Agreement and two 
Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting one Owner's Temporary 
Grading Easement for Construction, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction 
Project. 
 

j. Resolution approving and adopting payment standards for the City's Section 8 Rental 
Assistance Program, to become effective November 1, 2018. 
 

k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Letter of Agreement for asbestos testing 
and clearance monitoring services with Hawkeye Environmental relative to the Northern 
Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. 
 

G. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

H. City Council Referrals. 
 

I. City Council Updates. 
 

J. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected 
to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the 
governmental body would receive for that property, following Public Forum. 



 
3 of  3 

 

 
K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 

City business.) 
 

L. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, OCTOBER 1, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
52045 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of September 17, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring October 7-13, 2018 as Earth Science 
Week and Geologist Sherman Lundy and UNI Student Evan Eades commented. 

  
The Mayor read a proclamation declaring October 7-13, 2018 as Mental Illness 
Awareness Week.  National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) Board of Directors 
Member-at-Large Carollyn Hartsfield and Councilmember Wieland commented. 
 
The Mayor read a proclamation declaring October 2018 as Breast Cancer 
Awareness Month. Beyond Pink TEAM Representative Gabbi DeWitt commented 
and Assistant Police Chief Berte and Fire Chief Bostwick displayed Police and Fire 
Department pink badges being worn to raise awareness and being sold as a 
fundraiser. 

 
52046 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of September 21, 

2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption to Standard Distribution Co. for construction 
of a warehouse addition at 317 Savannah Park Drive. It was then moved by Wieland 
and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received 
and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52047 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed partial property tax exemption. Upon being advised that there were no 
written communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II 
Graham commented briefly. There being no one else present wishing to speak either 
for or against the proposed partial property tax exemption, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52048 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2932, granting a 

partial property tax exemption to Standard Distribution Co. for construction of a 
warehouse addition at 317 Savannah Park Drive, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52049 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of September 21, 

2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed Agreement for 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Private Development and conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to Six Kids, 
L.L.C. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
52050 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Agreement. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II Graham 
commented briefly. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or 
against the proposed Agreement, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed 
to the next order of business. 

 
52051 -   It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,272, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development and a 
Minimum Assessment Agreement with Six Kids, L.L.C., and approving and 
authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain real estate to 
Six Kids, L.L.C., be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,272 
duly passed and adopted. 
 

52052 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of September 21, 
2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed rezoning from A-
1, Agricultural District, to HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, of property located in 
the southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue, subject to certain 
conditions. It was then moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
52053 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed rezoning. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner II Graham and Midland 
Atlantic Development Company Managing Principal John Silverman, 8044 
Montgomery Road Suite 370, Cincinnati, Ohio, commented briefly. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed rezoning, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52054 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2933, amending 

Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property located in the 
southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue from A-1, Agricultural 
District, and placing the same in HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, subject to 
certain conditions, be passed upon its first consideration. Councilmember Green 
commented on gateway aesthetics. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52055 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of September 21, 

2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed rezoning from A-
1, Agricultural District, to R-1, Residence District, of property located at the north end 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

of Lakeshore Drive. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
52056 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed rezoning. Upon being advised that there was one written communication 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III Sturch commented 
briefly. Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) Engineer Steve Trosky responded to 
concerns expressed by Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed rezoning, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 
 

52057 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2934, amending 
Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property located at the north 
end of Lakeshore Drive from A-1, Agricultural District, and placing the same in R-1, 
Residence District, be passed upon its first consideration. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Wieland, Kruse, Green and Darrah and 
responses by Planner III Sturch and Community Development Director Sheetz, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: 
deBuhr. Motion carried.  
 

52058 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2931, amending 
Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design guidelines in the 
Central Business District Overlay Zoning District, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. The Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #2931 duly passed and adopted. 
 

52059 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller that the following items and 
recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of September 17, 2018 relative 
to the following items: 

(1) Promotion of Household Hazardous Materials Drop-off & Electronics Recycling 
Event – September 22, 2018. 

(2) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Information Systems Technician I. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of August 2018. 
 
Approve a request for a street closure and parking variance for the Pink Ribbon Run 
on October 6, 2018. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 

(1) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(2) Chapala 2, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(3) Peppers Grill & Sports Pub, 620 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

(4) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(5) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(6) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B native 

wine – adding Class B wine. 
(7) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B 

native wine – adding Class B wine. 
(8) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B native wine 

– adding Class B wine. 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52060 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Green that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
  

Resolution #21,273, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow 
property located at 1028 West 12th Street. 
 
Resolution #21,274, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow 
property located at 424 Balboa Avenue. 
  
Resolution #21,275, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow 
and clear overgrown vegetation on the property located at 933 West 13th Street. 

 
Resolution #21,276, approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to SIRE 
Technologies Maintenance Agreement with Hyland Software, Inc. relative to the 
City's agenda management software. 

 
Resolution #21,277, approving and authorizing execution of a 28E Agreement for 
Tobacco, Alternative Nicotine and Vapor Product Enforcement with the Iowa 
Alcoholic Beverages Division. 

 
Resolution #21,278, approving and accepting completion of public improvements in 
The Arbors Third Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,279, approving and authorizing execution of four Owner Purchase 
Agreements, and approving and accepting four Owner's Temporary Grading 
Easements and two Public Utility Easements, in conjunction with the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,280, approving and authorizing Change Order No. 2 to the contract 
with Iowa Bridge & Culvert, LC for the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System Improvements 
Project. 
 
Resolution #21,281, approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase 
Agreement, and approving and accepting a Partial Release of Real Estate Mortgage 
and Permanent Utility Easement, in conjunction with the 2017 Levee/Floodwall 
System Improvements Project. 
 
Resolution #21,282, approving and accepting completion of traffic signal 
improvements in the Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition. 
 

-4-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Resolution #21,283, approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement 
with Aureon Network Services relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications 
system in the West 1st Street & North Union Road public right-of-way. 
 
Resolution #21,284, approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement 
with Aureon Network Services relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications 
system in the Magnolia Drive & Crescent Drive public right-of-way. 
 
Resolution #21,285, approving and accepting the low bids, and approving and 
authorizing execution of three Rehabilitation Contracts with Kirvan Enterprises LLC, 
relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) housing rehabilitation 
projects. 
 
Resolution #21,286, approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District 
site plan for a deck addition at 419 Washington Street. 
 
Resolution #21,287, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Waterloo relative to Iowa Northland Regional Council 
of Governments (INRCOG) preparation of the City's FY20-24 Five-Year 
Consolidated Action Plan for the Community Development Block Grant & HOME 
Programs. 
 
Resolution #21,288, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service 
Agreement with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) 
relative to preparation of the Five-Year Consolidated Plan and Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing for FFY 19-23 (City FY20-24). 
 
Resolution #21,289, of support for a grant application to the Black Hawk County 
Gaming Association relative to the Downtown Streetscape Project. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,273 through #21,289 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52061 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,290, approving 

and authorizing execution of an Agreement with Wantman Group, Inc. (WGI) to 
perform parking consulting services relative to a Downtown Parking Study, be 
adopted. Following questions by Councilmember Kruse and responses by Finance 
and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,290 duly passed and adopted. 

  
52062 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,291, 

approving and authorizing placement of a Gold Star Family monument in Veterans 
Memorial Park, subject to funding by private donations, as recommended by the 
Parks & Recreation Commission, be adopted. Following expressed appreciation by 
Councilmembers deBuhr and Darrah, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 

-5-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,291 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52063 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green that Resolution #21,292, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Letter of Agreement and Request for 
Provisionally Accredited Levee (PAL) Designation with U.S. Homeland Security 
relative to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) accreditation of the 
levee, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmember Kruse and responses by 
City Engineer Resler and City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on 
the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,292 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52064 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse to pass an ordinance amending 

Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to keeping of chickens and 
ducks, upon its first consideration. Community Development Director Sheetz 
provided a brief explanation of the proposed ordinance and responded to questions 
by Councilmembers Miller and deBuhr. Councilmembers Wieland and Green 
commented briefly.  

 
      Following comments by Councilmembers Wieland and Green, it was moved by 

Green and seconded by Kruse to amend the motion by referring the issue to the 
Committee of the Whole for further discussion. Following questions and comments 
by Councilmembers Blanford, Green, Kruse and Miller, the motion to amend failed 3-
4, with Miller, deBuhr, Blanford and Wieland voting nay. 

 
      Following comments by Councilmembers Miller, Blanford and Kruse, it was moved 

by Kruse that the ordinance be amended to include a limit of 12 chickens.  Motion 
failed for lack of a second. 

 
      Following comments by Councilmembers Green and Wieland, and response by City 

Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the original motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, 
Darrah. Nay: deBuhr, Blanford, Wieland, Green. Motion failed. 

 
52065 -     It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Blanford that the bills and payroll be 

allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue 
City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. 
Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52066 -  Mayor recognized Muscular Dystrophy Association (MDA) Ambassador Natalie 

Olson and announced future commitment to the “fill the boot” fundraiser. Mayor 
Brown also commented on the groundbreaking of the ‘Place to Play Park’ and 
recognized private fundraising efforts and local grants received for the project. 

 
52067 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Blanford to adjourn to Executive Session 

discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be 
reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay 
for that property or reduce the price the governmental body would receive for that 

-6-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

property, following Public Forum. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52068 -  Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, expressed concerns about the proposed Park 

Ridge Estates development and requested a referral by City Council for discussion. 
City Administrator Gaines responded to questions by Councilmembers Green and 
Miller regarding the rezoning process. 

 
     Mike Butler, 1022 Washington Street, expressed appreciation for the Clay Street 

Park improvements and for approving the Gold Star monument in Veterans Park. 
Councilmember Wieland thanked Mr. Butler for his service. 

 
     Darren Yoder, 4204 Berry Hill Road, commented on the fire that destroyed his home 

at 3919 Beaver Ridge Trail, and expressed concerns with firefighters resigning and 
effects of the Public Safety Officer Program.  

 
     Andrea Southall, 9020 Beaver Meadows Lane, commented about fire protection and 

rural water supply to her neighborhood. 
 
     Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to comments about the previously 

mentioned residential fire and issues with the rural water supply. Olson also 
commented about organizational changes happening in both the Police and Fire 
Departments and defended public safety officers as being fully trained and 
professional firefighters.  

 
 The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:46 P.M. 
 

Mayor Brown reconvened the Council Meeting at 9:03 P.M. and stated that Property 
Acquisition had been discussed but that no further action was required at this time. 

  
52069 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned at 9:04 

P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-7-

Item C. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2932 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 
ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 53,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE 
ADDITION CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY STANDARD 
DISTRIBUTION CO., LOCATED AT 317 SAVANNAH PARK ROAD, CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA  
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 
estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with 
said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial 
Property, of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 25, Taxation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Standard Distribution Co. has completed a 53,000 square foot 
industrial use warehouse addition on property owned by Standard Distribution Co., 
located at 317 Savannah Park Road, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 

Lots 2 and 3, Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase VI, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa, and Lots 1 and 2, Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase IX, City 
of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; 

 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and 
the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 1st day of October, 2018, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed 
since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 

-9-

Item E.1. 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to 
real estate by new construction of a 53,000 square foot industrial use warehouse 
addition constructed by Standard Distribution Co., on property owned by Standard 
Distribution Co., located at 317 Savannah Park Road, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally 
described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, to the extent and upon the terms and 
conditions provided for in Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and 
Sections 25-36 through 25-45 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. Responsibility for the proper and timely filing of an application for exemption with 
the Black Hawk County Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual 
value added which is eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first full assessment year after completion of construction, seventy-
five percent (75%). 

 
2. For the second full assessment year after completion of construction, sixty 

percent (60%). 
 
3. For the third full assessment year after completion of construction, forty-

five percent (45%). 
 
4. For the fourth full assessment year after completion of construction, thirty 

percent (30%). 
 
5. For the fifth full assessment year after completion of construction, fifteen 

percent (15%). 
 

INTRODUCED: October 1, 2018 

1ST CONSIDERATION: October 1, 2018 

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-10-

Item E.1. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2933 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 29-107, DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
OF DIVISION I, GENERALLY OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT 
REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29) ZONING, OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND 
RE-ENACTING SAID SECTION 29-107 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 
AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE CHANGE IN THE 
ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY 
THIS ORDINANCE 

 
  WHEREAS, the applicant, Midland Atlantic Development Company, has requested a 
rezoning of property located at the southwest corner of the intersection of W Ridgeway 
Avenue and Highway 58 in Cedar Falls, Iowa from A-1(Agricultural) to HWY-1 (Highway 
Commercial); and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property is designated for 
future commercial use; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has the reviewed the proposed 
rezoning and determined that it complies with the Comprehensive Plan provided that it meets 
conditions addressing the need for sidewalk, street, intersection, and traffic control 
improvements necessary to provide for safe and efficient pedestrian and traffic control and 
circulation; and 
 
  WHEREAS, Iowa Code Section 414.5 provides that as a part of an ordinance 
changing land from one zoning district to another zoning district, a city council may impose 
conditions on a property owner which are in addition to existing regulations, if the additional 
conditions have been agreed to in writing by the property owner before the public hearing 
required by Iowa Code Section 414.5, or any adjournment of the hearing, and if the conditions 
are reasonable, and are imposed to satisfy public needs which are directly caused by the 
requested change; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the owners of the property to be rezoned and applicant have agreed that 
the property shall be developed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 

-11-

Item E.2. 



Conditional Zoning Agreement attached hereto to ensure appropriate development in this 
area of the city. 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, finds that, as a condition 
of the approval of the rezoning request, certain conditions must be imposed on the property 
owner and on the property which the City Council finds are reasonable and necessary in 
order to satisfy public needs which would be directly caused by the rezoning of the property 
as described herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best interests 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said rezoning, subject however, to the conditional 
zoning agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said 
Ordinance; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and 
such hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 
 
All that part of the East ½ of the Northwest Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly of 
Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and 571 LD 973, except those parts conveyed for 
public highway in 113 LD 199 and 539 LD 85, and also except that part thereof conveyed to 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, in Doc. No. 2011-00009788. 
 
AND 
 
All that part of the West ½ of the Northeast Fractional Quarter of Section 2, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Northerly and 
Westerly of Highway No. 20 described in 539 LD 76 and lying Westerly and Southerly of the 
public highway described in 569 LD 205 and 539 LD 85. 

 
Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the 
HWY-1 Highway Commercial District, subject however, to the conditions set forth in the 
conditional zoning agreement attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein as 
fully as though set out word for word in this ordinance, which conditions are hereby imposed 
upon the property owner, his successors and assigns, and upon the above-described real 
estate, and shall run with the land. 
 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 
hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the 

-12-

Item E.2. 



HWY-1 Highway Commercial District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the 
zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 
 
 Section 3. That said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed 
and hereby re-enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same 
shall apply to and include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
INTRODUCED:     October 1, 2018    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   October 1, 2018    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                            James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-13-

Item E.2. 



 



-15-

Item E.2. 



-16-

Item E.2. 



-17-

Item E.2. 



-18-

Item E.2. 



-19-

Item E.2. 



-20-

Item E.2. 



-21-

Item E.2. 



-22-

Item E.2. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Prepared by: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2934 

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 29-107, DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
OF DIVISION I, GENERALLY OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29) ZONING, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

AND RE-ENACTING SAID SECTION 29-107 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS AMENDED, 
SO AS TO APPLY TO AND INCLUDE THE CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP 

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS ORDINANCE 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that all that area 
described as follows shall be removed from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District and placed in the 
R-1 Residence Zoning District, as follows: 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4), OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER 
(SE 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), RANGE 
FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT 
THE EAST SIX HUNDRED FIVE (605) FEET THEREOF. 
 
Also 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4), OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
(SW 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), RANGE 
FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT 
THE WEST ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY-EIGHT (1,248) FEET THEREOF 
 
And 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best 
interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 
 

-23-

Item E.3. 



 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 
hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW 1/4), OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER 
(SE 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), RANGE 
FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT 
THE EAST SIX HUNDRED FIVE (605) FEET THEREOF. 
 
Also 
 
THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4), OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
(SW 1/4) OF SECTION THREE (3), TOWNSHIP EIGHTY-NINE NORTH (T89N), RANGE 
FOURTEEN WEST (R14W) OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, BLACK HAWK, COUNTY, IOWA, LYING NORTH OF LAKEWOOD HILLS, EXCEPT 
THE WEST ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY-EIGHT (1,248) FEET THEREOF 
 
Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the R-1 
Residence District. 
 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 
hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-1 
Residence District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 
 
 Section 3. That said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-
enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and 
include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
INTRODUCED:     October 1, 2018    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   October 1, 2018    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                            James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-24-

Item E.3. 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

October 1, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 6:00 p.m. on October 1, 
2018, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland.  Staff members attended from all City Departments. Tom Nelson with the 
Waterloo Courier, Jim O’Loughlin, Curt Gravatt, Penny Popp and other members of the 
community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda 
Overman Park Neighborhood Association Presentation.  Jim O’Loughlin said that Clay 
Street Park is complete. He thanked the City for their partnership in the project.  He 
stated the association is in favor of the Main Street redesign, in support of incorporating 
complete streets in the design. 

Mayor Brown introduced the second item North Cedar Neighborhood Association 
Presentation.  Curt Gravatt gave a presentation on the North Cedar Neighborhood 
Association.  He stated they have been able to provide input on various city projects 
2012-2018.  He said they planted 100 trees along Lone Tree Road this past week with 
the help of area students.  Mr. Gravatt reviewed some challenges and priorities for the 
neighborhood.   

Mayor Brown introduced the third item on the agenda, South Main and Greenhill 
Corridor Neighborhood Association Presentation.  Penny Popp stated this past summer 
she helped form this neighborhood association. She stated the association covers a lot 
of area; Viking Road to Orchard Drive and from HWY 58 to Cedar Heights Drive.    They 
meet the 2nd Monday of the month from 6:30-7:30 pm, with their next meeting on 
October 8th at the West Lounge, Windcove, 5300 S. Main Street.  Ms. Popp said they 
hope to promote transparency and the health, safety and welfare of residents.    

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda bills and payroll.  Daryl Kruse 
motioned to approve the bills and payroll as presented and David Wieland seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:26 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-25-

Item F.1.a. 



 



 
 
 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
PUBLIC SAFETY – FIRE RESCUE DIVISION 

220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Fax; 319-268-5196 
Phone: 319-273-8690 

 

 
 

 
 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Brown and City Council 

CC:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director 

From:  John Bostwick, Fire Chief 

Re:  Holiday Hoopla Fireworks Show 

 
 
 
J & M Displays, Mike Barrett, has contacted Cedar Falls Fire Rescue requesting a permit to provide a fireworks 
display on November 23, 2018 at approximately 7:45 pm in the area of Gateway Park in Cedar Falls.   
 
I have discussed the event with J & M Displays and the following has been agreed to and will abide by: 
 

J & M Displays will fully comply with N.F.P.A. 1123, State of Iowa Chapter 727, and all applicable 
codes and regulations. 
 
J & M Displays has provided a minimum one million dollar insurance policy.  A copy of this policy has 
been forwarded to Cedar Falls Fire Rescue prior to the event. 
 
J & M Displays has submitted a site plan for approval to Cedar Falls Fire Rescue prior to the event. 
 
All personnel operating fireworks display equipment will be qualified to operate equipment. 
 
There will be proper margin of safety for spectators and personnel. 

 
Cedar Falls Fire Rescue will inspect and approve site for safety on the date of the display. 
 
Appropriate fees will be submitted previous to the event. 

 
 
I respectfully request that this application for a fireworks display permit be granted. 

 
 

-27-

Item F.1.b. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  October 10, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

(1) Aldi Inc., 6322 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

(2) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer - renewal. 

(3) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

(4) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

(5) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - change in ownership. 

(6) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 

(7) Just Dough, 6607 University Avenue, Class B beer - new. 

-29-

Item F.1.c. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: October 5, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Recruiting Firm        

 
As you are all aware, it has become very difficult to find qualified engineering positions. 
Approximately one year ago when the City was looking for a City Engineer candidate 
and we were not having much success, staff thought it was in the City’s best interest to 
get some help from a recruiting firm to help with the search.  At that time, we then 
solicited proposals from various recruiting firms.  However, we did not end up engaging 
any of the firms because Jon Resler ended up accepting the City Engineer position. 
Since we are now in the process of starting to look for the City Engineer position again, 
we went back to those proposals and selected one of the firms to work with.   
 
Attached is a proposal for search services with the Overture Group.  As part of this 
proposal, they have outlined their approach to the search and their contract terms.  You 
will also note that the fee is based on the 1st year salary, which will be approximately 
$25,000.  This fee was very comparable to the other proposals.   
 
After your review and approval of the contract we will start working immediately with the 
recruiting firm in hopes of getting a new City Engineer in early 2019.  If you have 
questions regarding the contract, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-31-

Item F.2.a. 



 



 

P a g e  | 1 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Brandi Adam Mueller 
The Overture Group  
425 2nd Street SE Suite 801 
Cedar Rapids, IA 52401 
319.366.3688 
bmueller@theoverturegroup.com 
 

Proposal for Retained Exclusive Search Services  
 
Presented to: 
 

 

 
 
October 4, 2018  

-33-

Item F.2.a. 



P a g e  | 2 

 
 
October 4, 2018  
 
Jennifer Rodenbeck 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Dear Jennifer,  
 
Thank you for your time to discuss the City Engineer position with the City of Cedar Falls.  This 
Engagement Letter proposes an agreement for The Overture Group to partner with City of Cedar Falls in 
finding the best fit for the City Engineer position.  
 
Our Approach 
We will develop a slate of candidates whose capabilities, experience and performance match the 
requirements as discussed with you and defined in your job description, continuing the recruiting 
process until the position is filled. Our methodology is a proven step-by-step approach to deliver the 
best candidate.  
 
Our experience has shown that to maintain a solid communication stream, a strong alliance between 
you and our staff is desired. To this end, we will request important information such as job 
responsibilities, organizational culture and corporate objectives. In addition, we request access to a key 
person by whose authority they can expedite the scheduling of interviews, provide feedback within two 
business days and communicate the reason for candidate rejection to help us understand your needs 
and requirements. 
 
Site Visit/Business Understanding 
We will meet with you and other key people and obtain a tour of your operations.  In our site visit and 
discussions, we like to obtain a better understanding of the business including discussing any business 
plans, vision, organization charts, and the business culture today and desired business culture. This is a 
key step to help develop or better understand the position description and specification of the key 
positions you will be recruiting for. 
 
Position Description/Success Profile/Compensation 
During our initial meetings with you we will be capturing information to develop the success profile tool 
we will use to source qualified candidates. Once the success profile and job description is completed.  
We would utilize our Compensation expert to complete Market Pricing on the position. This information 
would be approved by you prior to the search process commencing.     
 
Candidate Sourcing/Interviewing 
We will search our database for related candidates, develop a demographic list of target organizations, 
network with industry professionals and utilize our contacts within professional associations to source 
appropriate candidates. If you desire, we can contact specific organizations or individuals that you 
believe may be worth pursuing. We will tap into our functional and industry staff expertise.  
A thorough screening process will be completed on all candidates to determine those whose 
capabilities, experience and performance will be best fitted for the job description and further pursued. 

-34-

Item F.2.a. 



P a g e  | 3 

After each candidate is screened and determined to be viable for the position, we will provide you with 
a resume. After your review of the resume and subsequent approval of the candidate, we will assist in 
coordinating and scheduling phone or face-to-face interviews with you.  
 
 
 
 
OUR PROCESS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-35-

Item F.2.a. 



P a g e  | 4 

Background and Reference Checks 
Once final candidates are chosen by you, we will arrange comprehensive background (employment, 
education, criminal and credit history) and reference checks through an outside service. 
 
We will follow up directly with all of the candidates who have been interviewed by you as well as 
communicate with the new hire to discuss their role, expectations, progress and concerns. 
 
Offer Letter 
If desired, we will assist with drafting an offer letter that will address the following:  

 Annual salary 

 Annual incentive 

 Employee benefits (health benefits, life and disability insurance, vacation/PTO, etc.) 

 Key legal provisions in your employment offer as necessary (non-solicitation of customers, non-
solicitation of employees, protection of intellectual capital and confidential information, change-
of-control provisions, etc.) 

 Conditions of the offer 
 
On-Boarding/Follow Up Program 
Once you have secured a candidate, we will work with you to develop an on-boarding plan to ensure an 
easy transition for both you and your new employees. This plan also builds a foundation that helps 
accelerate their contribution to the company. We have found newly hired executives and managers, as 
well as the hiring companies, find tremendous benefit from a well-defined on-boarding plan that covers 
their first three to six months of employment.  
 
In approximately three to four months, we will follow up with you as well as the newly hired employees 
at your office in a planned meeting to discuss their role, expectations, progress and concerns. In 
addition, as appropriate, we will revisit the on-boarding plan. 
 
Staffing/Fees/Cancellation/Guarantee 
Brandi Mueller and Nicole McAndrew will be the project managers for this engagement; we will also use 
other dedicated resources as appropriate. For this search, our professional service fee will be 25% of the 
first years’ annual projected compensation. A retainer project fee of 1/3 will be due upon acceptance of 
this proposal. We will invoice City of Cedar Falls the remainder 2/3 of the fee on the first day of 
employment of your new employee. Our invoice is due within 30 days of your respective candidates 
start date. 
 
You will receive a 1-year replacement guarantee if payment is received according to the terms as stated 
above. If the placed candidate leaves his or her employment within 12 months of his/her start date for 
any reason, other than a change of control, reorganization or position elimination, The Overture Group 
will provide a replacement search for this first candidate placed at no cost to you. 
 
If any additional hire(s) result from candidates presented by The Overture Group to you within a 12-
month period after accepting the condition of terms on this engagement letter, Client agrees to pay a 
placement fee of 25% of the candidate’s first year annual salary. 

 
 
This search engagement will begin immediately after receipt of the signed proposal.  

-36-

Item F.2.a. 



P a g e  | 5 

 
BUSINESS TERMS AND PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

 

The attached General Business Terms apply to this Engagement Letter, and are incorporated herein by 
this reference. Please indicate your acceptance of this proposal by signing below and returning a copy to 
Brandi Mueller. 
 
We look forward to working with you and the team! If at any time you have questions, concerns, or 
issues with our services, billings or anything else related to our service, please Brandi Mueller at 319-
366-3688. 

Sincerely, 

The Overture Group, LLC  

 

Brandi Mueller       

Attachments:  General Business Terms 

 
This Engagement Letter and the attached General Business Terms set forth the terms and conditions 
of our agreement and by executing below the undersigned hereby accepts and agrees to be bound by 
the terms set forth therein.  
 
Acknowledged and Accepted:  
City of Cedar Falls  
 
 
By:   
 
 

Title:  
 
 
Date:       

 

EIN:        

 
General Business Terms 

 
The following General Business Terms are incorporated into the Engagement Letter and proposal made by the Overture Group, LLC and are 
collectively referred to herein as the “Agreement”: 
 
1.  Confidentiality. With respect to any information supplied in connection with this Agreement and designated by either party as confidential, or which the 
recipient should reasonably believe is confidential based on its subject matter or the circumstances of its disclosure, the recipient agrees to protect the 
confidential information in a reasonable and appropriate manner, and use and reproduce the confidential information only as necessary to perform its obligations 
under this Agreement and for no other purpose. The obligations in this section will not apply to information which is: (i) publicly known; (ii) already known to the 
recipient; (iii) lawfully disclosed by a third party; (iv) independently developed; or (v) disclosed pursuant to legal requirement or order. Subject to the foregoing, 
the recipient may disclose the confidential information on a need-to-know basis to the recipient’s contractors, agents and affiliates who agree to maintain its 
confidential nature.  

-37-

Item F.2.a. 



P a g e  | 6 

 
2. Deliverables. (a) Upon full payment of all amounts due The Overture Group in connection with this Agreement, all right, title and interest in the deliverables 
set out in the Engagement Letter will become Client’s sole and exclusive property, except as set forth below. The Overture Group will retain sole and exclusive 
ownership of all right, title and interest in its work papers, proprietary information, processes, methodologies, techniques, ideas, concepts, trade secrets, know 
how and software, including such information as existed prior to the delivery of the services and, to the extent such information is of general application, anything 
which The Overture Group may discover, create or develop during the provision of services for Client. Except for software owned by and/or proprietary to The 
Overture Group, to the extent the deliverables contain The Overture Group’s proprietary information, The Overture Group grants Client a non-exclusive, non-
assignable, royalty-free license to use it in connection with the deliverables and the subject of the Engagement Letter and for no other or further use. To the 
extent the deliverables contain the proprietary information of a third party; Client agrees to comply with such third party’s terms of license as the same are 
communicated to Client. All licenses to software (including any enhancements to software) will be licenses to object code only. 
 
(b) Client acknowledges and agrees that any advice, information or work product provided to Client by The Overture Group in connection with this engagement is 
for the sole benefit and use of Client and may not be relied upon or used by any third party. Client further agrees that if it makes any such advice, information or 
work product available to any third party other than as expressly permitted by the Engagement Letter or Section 1(v) above, the provisions of Section 4(c) below 
will apply unless: (i) Client provides to the third party an acknowledgement and release letter substantially in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Letter”); 
and (ii) the third-party signs and returns the Letter to Client. Upon request, Client will provide The Overture Group with a copy of the signed Letter. 
 
3. Warranty. The Overture Group warrants that the services will be performed with reasonable care in a diligent and competent manner. The Overture Group’s 
sole obligation will be to correct any non-conformance with this warranty or, if The Overture Group cannot correct the non-conformance, to refund to Client the 
amount paid to The Overture Group for the portion of the services or deliverables that does not conform to this warranty; provided that Client gives The Overture 
Group written notice within thirty (30) days after the services are performed or, if applicable, deliverables are delivered. The notice will specify and detail the non-
conformance and The Overture Group will have a reasonable amount of time, based on its severity and complexity, to correct the non-conformance. The 
Overture Group does not warrant and is not responsible for any third-party products or services. Client’s sole and exclusive rights and remedies with respect to 
any third-party products or services are against the third-party vendor and not against The Overture Group. 
 
THIS WARRANTY IS THE OVERTURE GROUP’S ONLY WARRANTY CONCERNING THE SERVICES AND ANY DELIVERABLE, AND IS MADE EXPRESSLY 
IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR OTHERWISE, ALL OF WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED. 
 
4. Indemnification. (a) Each party agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the other from and against any and all claims, actions, fees, expenses, costs, 
damages, losses and liabilities (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) (collectively, “Liabilities”) for bodily injury or death of any person or damage to real or 
tangible personal property which the other party may sustain or incur, to the extent such Liabilities result from the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
indemnifying party, its employees, agents or representatives. 
 
(b) The Overture Group agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend Client from and against any and all Liabilities to the extent such Liabilities result from the 
infringement of any third party’s intellectual property by any deliverables provided under this Agreement. The foregoing indemnification will not apply to the extent 
any infringement results from: (i) the use of the deliverables other than in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and any applicable documentation or 
instructions supplied by The Overture Group; (ii) any modification to the deliverables not expressly agreed to in writing by The Overture Group; or (iii) the 
combination of the deliverables with any materials not provided or expressly approved by The Overture Group. 
 
(c) Client agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless The Overture Group from and against any and all Liabilities incurred or suffered by or asserted against 
The Overture Group to the extent such Liabilities result from a third party’s use, possession of or reliance upon The Overture Group’s advice, information or work 
product as a result of Client’s failure to comply with the Letter requirements of Section 2(b) above. 
 
5. Liability. (a) Except for each party’s indemnification obligations under this Agreement, the total liability of Client and The Overture Group (and their respective 
affiliates, Officers, directors, employees, contractors, agents and representatives) relating to this Agreement will in no event exceed an amount equal to the fees 
paid (in the case of The Overture Group’s liability) or owing (in the case of Client’s liability) to The Overture Group under this Agreement. In no event will Client or 
The Overture Group (or their respective affiliates, Officers, directors, employees, contractors, agents or representatives) be liable for any special, consequential, 
incidental, punitive or exemplary damages or loss (nor any loss of profits, savings, data, use of software or hardware or business opportunity, or interruption of 
business) even if advised of the possibility of such loss. 
 
(b) In addition, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, when a candidate is hired by the Client, Client agrees and acknowledges that from that 
point in time going forward, The Overture Group (and their respective affiliates, Officers, directors, employees, contractors, agents and representatives) shall not 
be liable for any damages including, but not limited to, special, consequential, incidental, punitive or exemplary damages or loss of any kind. 
 
6. Termination. (a) Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice to the other party. (b) 
Client will pay The Overture Group for all services rendered (including deliverables and products delivered), expenses incurred and commitments made by The 
Overture Group through the effective date of termination. 
 
7. General. (a) Except for the payment of money, neither party will be liable for any delays or failures in performance due to circumstances beyond its reasonable 
control.  (b) No term of this Agreement will be deemed waived, and no breach of this Agreement excused, unless the waiver or consent is in writing signed by the 
party granting such waiver or consent.  (c) Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement without the other party’s prior written consent. (d) Any notices 
given pursuant to this Agreement will be in writing, delivered to the addresses set forth in the Engagement Letter (unless changed by either party by notice to the 
other party), and will be effective upon receipt.  (e) If any term or provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such term or provision 
will be deemed stricken, and all other terms and provisions will remain in full force and effect.  (f) Each party is an independent contractor and not an employee, 
agent, joint venture or partner of the other.  As independent contractors, the parties shall not have, or hold themselves out as having, the power or authority to 
bind or create liability for the other by their intentional or negligent acts.  (g) The Overture Group may from time to time use subcontractors to deliver specific 
products or services to Client. The management of and all financial arrangements with subcontractors will be The Overture Group’s responsibility. (h) The terms 
of this Agreement which by their nature are to survive this Agreement will survive its expiration or termination.  (i) The parties acknowledge that they may 
correspond or convey documentation via Internet e-mail and that neither party has control over the performance, reliability, availability, or security of Internet e-

-38-

Item F.2.a. 



P a g e  | 7 

mail. Therefore, neither party will be liable for any loss, damage, expense, harm or inconvenience resulting from the loss, delay, interception, corruption, or 
alteration of any Internet e-mail due to any reason beyond its reasonable control.  (j) Neither party intends that there be any third-party beneficiaries to this 
Agreement.  (k) Neither party will use the other party’s name, trademarks, service marks, logos, trade names and/or branding without such party’s prior written 
consent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, The Overture Group may mention Client’s name and provide a general description of the engagement in The Overture 
Group’s client lists and marketing materials.  (l) The parties agree that this Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the 
services will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa without regard to such state’s laws of conflicts. The parties agree 
that all litigation or other legal proceedings under this Agreement will be brought in the State or Federal courts located within the State of Iowa. The parties agree 
to this choice of law, jurisdiction and venue, and waive the defense of an inconvenient forum. Additionally, the parties waive trial by jury and agree that any 
dispute or claim should be resolved by a judge without a jury, and each party agrees to be subject to the personal jurisdiction of the courts of Iowa. Interest shall 
accrue on any outstanding balance at the rate of 5% per annum. (m) Any action against either party by the other in connection with this Agreement must be 
brought within eighteen (18) months after the cause of action arises. (n) If any conflict arises between the terms of this Engagement Letter and these General 
Business Terms, the General Business Terms shall apply.  (o) This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter 
hereof and supersedes all other agreements, written or oral, between the parties with respect to its subject matter. 

 

-39-

Item F.2.a. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: October 5, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Sturgis Falls Bookkeeping Agreement           

 
Starting in 2016, at the request of City Council, I have been attending the Sturgis Falls 
Celebration board meetings as a liaison from the City.  About a year ago, the Board 
approached me with the idea of having the City of Cedar Falls provide their 
bookkeeping services.  We decided to try it for a year and see how it goes for both 
parties.  The trial period was completed October 1st and both parties felt it has been a 
good working relationship.  Therefore, we have drafted a formal agreement with Sturgis 
Falls to provide these bookkeeping services moving forward for a fee not to exceed 
$1,500/year.  The fee was based on how much time we spent this past year, taking into 
account that there was setup work we had to perform that we will not have in future 
years.   
 
You will see in the agreement that the records of Sturgis Falls are to be kept separately 
from city records and are not subject to open records under the Iowa Code. Also, this 
agreement is very similar to the services we provide to the Cedar Falls Community 
Foundation.  Cathy Niebergall in the Financial Services area has been the staff person 
dedicated to these bookkeeping services for both of the entities. Again, we feel that the 
arrangement with Sturgis Falls has been working very well and would recommend 
continuing to provide this service in accordance with this agreement.   
 
If you have questions regarding the agreement, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-41-

Item F.2.b. 



 



-43-

Item F.2.b. 



-44-

Item F.2.b. 



-45-

Item F.2.b. 



-46-

Item F.2.b. 



-47-

Item F.2.b. 



 



-49-

Item F.2.c. 



 



-51-

Item F.2.c. 



-52-

Item F.2.c. 



-53-

Item F.2.c. 



-54-

Item F.2.c. 



-55-

Item F.2.c. 



-56-

Item F.2.c. 



-57-

Item F.2.c. 



-58-

Item F.2.c. 



-59-

Item F.2.c. 



-60-

Item
 F.2.c. 



-61-

Item
 F.2.c. 



 



-63-

Item F.2.d. 



-64-

Item F.2.d. 



-65-

Item F.2.d. 



-66-

Item F.2.d. 



-67-

Item F.2.d. 



-68-

Item F.2.d. 



-69-

Item F.2.d. 



-70-

Item F.2.d. 



-71-

Item F.2.d. 



-72-

Item
 F.2.d. 



-73-

Item F.2.d. 



 



   FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 M E M O R A N D U M
Public Records Division

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 DATE: October 12, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Amendment to Animal Services Agreement with Cedar Bend Human Society 

 
The City of Cedar Falls currently contracts with Cedar Bend Humane Society (CBHS) for 
animal services.  The current agreement with CBHS is a three-year agreement and is in 
effect thru June 30, 2020. 
 
Attached is a proposed Amendment to Agreement for Animal Services with the Cedar Bend 
Humane Society (CBHS).  The proposed amendment will only affect the licensing portion of 
the agreement and will allow CBHS the ability to process pet licensing for the City during 
adoption or redemption of dogs or cats.  Waterloo currently partners with CBHS for similar 
services and has indicated that it is working very well. As part of this amendment, CBHS 
would collect and retain all pet licensing fees, and forward the licensing information to the 
City for subsequent renewals and notifications. 
 
We have a great partnership with the Cedar Bend Humane Society and we believe that this 
collaborative effort will result in more pets being licensed each year. Therefore, I recommend 
approval of this amendment.  Please feel free to contact me with any questions. Thank you. 

-75-

Item F.2.e. 



 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR ANIMAL SERVICES 
 

This First Amendment to Agreement for Animal Services (hereinafter called the “First 
Amendment”) is agreed upon on ___________________, 2018, by and between the Cedar Bend Humane 
Society (hereinafter called “SOCIETY”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter called “CITY”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. SOCIETY and CITY are parties to a certain Agreement for Animal Services dated July 10, 

2017, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (hereinafter called the 
“Agreement”). 

 
B. The parties desire to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, in consideration of the premises and other consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 The Agreement is amended by striking Section 10 therefrom in its entirety and by substituting in 
lieu thereof a new Section 10, as follows: 
 

10.  Licensing.  SOCIETY shall fully cooperate with CITY and any and all departments of the CITY in 
performance and observance of the ordinances of the CITY pertaining to licensing of dogs and 
cats, and shall not release any dog or cat that is four (4) months of age or older to the owner 
thereof or to any other person without first processing an application for a pet license.  Said 
application shall be in the form provided by the CITY, and SOCIETY shall forward completed 
applications for pet licensing to the CITY within seven (7) days of being completed.  Upon receipt 
of completed application forms, CITY shall issue licensing tags to the applicant.  SOCIETY shall 
collect and retain all applicable pet licensing fees outlined in the CITY fee schedule that is 
adopted annually by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls.    
 
Except as modified by this First Amendment, the Agreement shall continue unmodified in full 

force and effect.  This First Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original and all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment to Agreement for 
Animal Services by their duly authorized representatives as of the date first set forth above. 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA    CEDAR BEND HUMANE SOCIETY 
 
 
By: ______________________________   By: ____________________________ 
        James P. Brown, Mayor     Karla Beckman, Co-Director 
 
 
Attest: ___________________________   By: ____________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk    Kristy Gardner, Co-Director 

-77-

Item F.2.e. 



 



-79-

Item F.2.e. 



-80-

Item F.2.e. 



-81-

Item F.2.e. 



-82-

Item F.2.e. 



-83-

Item F.2.e. 



-84-

Item F.2.e. 



M E M O R A N D U M  

 DATE: October 4, 2018 

 TO: The Honorable Mayor Jim Brown and Cedar Falls City Council 

 FROM: Heather Skeens, Cultural Programs 

 SUBJECT: Lease of sculpture – Extension through May 2019 

Summary:  The Cedar Falls Art and Culture Board and staff have reviewed the attached contract with 
artist Dallas Guffey to extend a lease of a sculpture installed on the sculpture pad located at 311 Main 
Street in downtown Cedar Falls, Iowa. The board respectfully requests that the City Council consider it 
for approval. A year-long lease approved last year expires this month.  This lease extension, through 
May 2019, will put the committee’s program on a more student-centered timeline going forward.  

Financial Considerations: The Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board has agreed to pay Mr. Guffey $750 for the 
lease of the selected work of art through May 2019. The board will have the first right to purchase the 
work of art as a permanent part of the public art collection, in which case Guffey will be notified of the 
intent to purchase it at least 60 days prior to the end of the lease agreement period. 

Selection Process: The Cedar Falls Public Art Committee (PAC) asked Tom Stancliffe and Dan Perry, both 
of whom are part of the Public Art Incubator program at UNI and teach in the Department of Art, to help 
select student artworks to display for a year at a time on the “Miller Pad.” This student sculpture 
program is funded by the C. Hugh Pettersen Estate and the PAC “In Memory of Reuben & Hazel Miller, 
Miller Shoe Store, 319 Main Street, 1916-2002. Stancliffe and Perry recommended the sculpture to the 
PAC. The recommendation was unanimously accepted.  

At their 10/03/2018 meeting, the Art & Culture Board recommend that City Council approve the 
agreement with Mr. Guffey. If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

-85-

Item F.2.f. 



 



PUBLIC ART COMMITTEE 
AGREEMENT FOR LEASE OF ARTWORK 

 

This agreement is between the Cedar Falls Public Art Committee (hereafter called “PAC”), a committee 
of the Art & Culture Board of the City of Cedar Falls, located at the Hearst Center for the Arts, 304 West 
Seerley Boulevard, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613,  

and,  

Dallas Guffey (hereafter called the “Artist”), 2800 Kalmia Ave #B204, Boulder, CO 80301 

Background Information 

PAC seeks to improve the community aesthetic for public art and serve as an exhibitor for the Artist for 
the purpose of leasing the Artwork  

1. Artwork: The Artist has agreed to permit PAC to display the Artwork titled TILT SHIFT (hereafter 
called “Artwork”). A photograph of the Artwork is attached hereto as Attachment A and 
incorporated by reference herein.  

2. Display of Artwork: Artwork will be on display in the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereafter called 
“City”) through May 2019.  

3. Delivery and Installation of the Artwork: At the conclusion of the one (1) year renewal term, 
delivery of the Artwork back to the Artist shall be the responsibility of the Artist. If the Artist 
does not remove the Artwork within sixty (60) days after lease expires, then the Artwork 
becomes the property of PAC and PAC may keep the Artwork and store it or dispose of it.  

4. Right to Purchase: PAC shall have first right to purchase the work. The Artist will be notified of 
the PAC’s intent to purchase at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the contract.  

5. Insurance & Liability: From the time the Artwork is installed until the Artist removes the Artwork 
or the Artwork becomes the possession of PAC, PAC will provide general liability insurance for 
the Artwork and name the Artist as an additional insured on its policy during the term if the 
lease. PAC will not be responsible to the Artist for any damage, destruction, theft or other 
casualty to the Artwork. Any additional insurance coverage for the market value of the Artwork 
shall be the responsibility of the Artist to obtain at the Artist’s expense.  

6. Hold Harmless: The Artist agrees to hold free and harmless the City and the PAC and their 
associated directors, officers, employees, agents, and servants, whether they are current or 
former, from and against all actions, claims, liabilities, assertions of liability, losses, costs, and 
expenses, in law or in equity, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees at trial and appellate 
levels, reasonable investigative and discovery costs, court costs, or claims for bodily injury or 
death of persons and for loss or damage to property, except as provided for herein, of every 
kind and nature whatsoever, which in any manner directly or indirectly may arise or be alleged 
to have arisen, from the installation, deinstallation, or display of the Artwork as a result of the 
duties and obligations as required by this Renewal.  

 

-87-

Item F.2.f. 



7. Honorarium: PAC will pay the Artist an Honorarium of $750.00 for the loan of the Artwork.  

8. Motion Pictures, Television Productions, and Photographs: The Artist gives PAC permission to 
allow the Artist’s Artwork to be included in any motion picture television production, and/or 
photographs taken in the City. In addition, the artist gives permission to the production 
company and/or photographer to exhibit all or any part of said film or photographs throughout 
the world.  

9. Independent Contractor: Nothing herein shall be construed to create an employer-employee 
relationship between the parties, and Artist remains an independent contractor through the 
term of this agreement and is totally responsible for his own materials, labor, costs, 
transportation and insurance.  

 

Artist 

By: ______________________________  
Dallas Guffey  

 

 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  

 

By: ______________________________  
James P. Brown, Mayor  

 

ATTEST:  

 

___________________________  
Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC  

City Clerk  
  

-88-

Item F.2.f. 



Attachment A  

 

-89-

Item F.2.f. 



 



-91-

Item F.2.g. 



-92-

Item F.2.g. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 
 
 DATE: October 4, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Center Street Recreational Trail Project 
  Project Number RT-000-3107 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to construct the Center Street Recreational Trail 
from Cottage Row Road to Lone Tree Road. The project will require the acquisition of 
temporary easements and right of way along Center Street. Plans for the project shows 
the need for acquisitions from approximately twenty four (24) properties. 
 
We recommend that the City Council approve Parcel 11 Temporary Easement 
Agreement and record all acquisition documents at the black hawk county courthouse.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 

-93-

Item F.2.h. 



 



-95-

Item F.2.h. 



-96-

Item F.2.h. 



-97-

Item F.2.h. 



-98-

Item F.2.h. 



-99-

Item F.2.h. 



-100-

Item F.2.h. 



-101-

Item F.2.h. 



-102-

Item F.2.h. 



-103-

Item F.2.h. 



-104-

Item F.2.h. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division wwww Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division wwww Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: October 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: W. 1st Street Reconstruction Project - Property Acquisitions 
  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1st Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 
project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and other 
infrastructure work will be started early next year. The road construction will take place in 2019-
2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to a five lane 
facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties and partial 
acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Appraisals and offers are gradually being sent to the properties affected by this corridor 
reconstruction project. The owners of the following properties have accepted our offer. 
 
Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 
28 654 Properties LLC 721 W. 1st Street Temporary Easement 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use federal funds for the design and right of way portion of this project. Per an 
agreement with the DOT approved on August 7, 2017, the city will be the lead in property 
acquisition and design. All eligible project costs will be split 50% City and 50% DOT which 
includes engineering, right of way, construction and construction administration. The city signed 
as agreement with Snyder and Associates on September 5, 2017 for these services. Funds for 
this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 and FY20 
under item number 91. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing 
documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving 
the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the W. 1st Street 

-105-

Item F.2.i. 



reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

-106-

Item F.2.i. 



-107-

Item F.2.i. 



-108-

Item F.2.i. 



-109-

Item F.2.i. 



-110-

Item F.2.i. 



-111-

Item F.2.i. 



-112-

Item F.2.i. 



-113-

Item F.2.i. 



-114-

Item F.2.i. 



-115-

Item F.2.i. 



-116-

Item F.2.i. 



-117-

Item F.2.i. 



-118-

Item F.2.i. 



-119-

Item F.2.i. 



-120-

Item F.2.i. 



-121-

Item F.2.i. 



-122-

Item F.2.i. 



-123-

Item F.2.i. 



 



76
75

74 6973 72
66

6571 70 63 62
61

59
58

53
52

51 48 47
45 4478

798081
82 253 4 5 5 6 7 388 26

40

399 31 32
33

34 3735 36
10 12 14 17 19

20
21

22
24

1

77

27
28

68
67

64 60
57

56
55

54
49 4143

2 29 30
11 16 18

23

42

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt
 St

Crescent Dr

Fr
an

kli
n S

t

N 
Co

lle
ge

 St

Co
tta

ge
 G

rv

Elm St

W Park Dr

W 3rd St

W 2nd St

Pa
rk

Dr

W 1st St

Edgewood St

Linda Dr

Theimer St

S Forest Rd

Pine St

Hu
ds

o n
R d

Fr
an

cis
 St

Di
vis

ion
 St

Me
mo

ria
l A

ve

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

W 3rd St
Pe

ar
l S

t

Ida St

Ol
ive

 St

Oak St

Parkway Ave

Ell
en

 St

Iow
a S

t

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Ge
ne

vie
ve

 St

Cl
ay

 St

N 
Fr

an
cis

 S
t

NEllen St

S Park Rd

Linden St

Edgewood St

Maple St

N 
Di

vis
ion

 S
t

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Forres tR d

Hi
gh

lan
d D

r

Willow Bend Rd

Parkway Ave

N 
Ge

ne
vie

ve
 S

t

Higby Dr

Ba
ke

r D
r

N
H ighlandDr

Center St

I

Signed
Submitted for Approval
Not Signed

-125-

Item
 F.2.i. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Lisa Ahern, Planner I 

 DATE: October 11, 2018   

 SUBJECT: Payment Standards for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program has been part of the City for more than 35 
years, providing assistance to lower income individuals and families in need of adequate 
housing.  For families to be successful in finding quality housing, the program must adopt 
payment standards for rental assistance. The payment standard is the maximum amount of 
rental assistance the Public Housing Authority (PHA) can provide, after the tenant pays 30% of 
their income toward housing costs.   
 
Payment standards must be within 90% to 110% of the Fair Market Rents (FMR) which are 
published annually by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).   HUD 
released its Fair Market Rents for Fiscal Year 2019.  An increase was received for the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls metro area for all unit sizes.    
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Cedar Falls last updated its payment standards in 2016.   The current payment standards are 
between 89% and 92% of the 2019 FMRs, which for some units is below the minimum 90% 
FMR.  When existing standards fall below 90% of the proposed FMR, HUD requires the PHA to 
adopt the new payment standards within three months.  The following table documents the 
current payment standards and their percentage of the 2019 FMR.  
  

CURRENT PAYMENT STANDARDS AND 2019 FMR 
 0 Bed 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed 

CURRENT PAYMENT 
STANDARD $492 $586 $751 $1001 $1235 

2019 FMR $554 $662 $836 $1087 $1355 

% of FMR 89% 89% 90% 92% 91% 
 
The current payment standards fall short of the FMR. Historically, the City has opted to utilize a 
110% standard for one to four bedroom units, since the FMR is based on rents across both 

-127-

Item F.2.j. 



Waterloo and Cedar Falls and high demand for student rentals in Cedar Falls puts an upward 
pressure on rental prices.  Units with more than four bedrooms are rare and have remained at a 
payment standard of 100% of FMR, because the multiplier used to calculated the FMR for 
additional bedrooms results in a higher than typical payment standard for the market.  
 
Insufficient payment standards undermine the main goal of the program to house low income 
households in safe, quality, affordable environments.  Participants who receive a voucher have 
120 days to find a unit that meets the minimum Housing Quality Standards (HQS). If they do not 
find a unit in this timeframe, their voucher expires and they must reapply – a process that can 
take a year or longer.  The ability of these participants, who have very limited means, to find a 
unit that will pass a HQS inspection under the existing, outdated payment standards is quite 
challenging. 
 
Increasing the payment standards to 110% of the FMR (100% for units with 5 or more 
bedrooms) will improve the program’s lease-up rate and expand the housing choices available 
to participants.  Going forward, Staff recommends reviewing payment standards on an annual 
basis and updating them as necessary will ensure that standards are in line with local housing 
market conditions. The table below illustrates the proposed payment standards as they relate to 
the 2019 FMRs. 
 

$609
$728

$919
$1,195 $1,490

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

0 Bed 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed

PROPOSED Payment Standards Relative to 2019 FMR

Proposed Payment Standards 2019 FMR
 

  
PROPOSED PAYMENT STANDARDS 

 0 Bed 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed 
Proposed Payment 

Standard $609 $728  $919  $1195  $1490 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  The proposed payment standards were reviewed by the Housing 
Commission during the October 9, 2018 meeting. The Commission recommends that City 
Council approve a resolution increasing the payment standards to 110% of the Fair 
Market Rent for 0-4 bedroom units and 100% of Fair Market Rent for units with more than 
four bedrooms, effective November 1, 2018. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Community Services Manager 

-128-

Item F.2.j. 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PAYMENT STANDARDS  
FOR THE FY 2019 SECTION 8 RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  

FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

 WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development established the Fair 
Market Rents (FMR) for the Waterloo/Cedar Falls area, effective October 1, 2018; and 
 WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is required to establish payment standards for its 
Housing Choice Voucher Program between 90% and 110% of the area FMR, as determined by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

WHEREAS, due to the relatively high demand and high cost market for rental units in 
Cedar Falls, the Cedar Falls Housing Commission recommends establishing the local payment 
standards for the Housing Choice Voucher Program at 110% of the area FMR for rental units 
with 0-4 bedrooms and at 100% of the area FMR for rental units with more than 4 bedrooms.  
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the citizens of Cedar Falls, Iowa that the revised 
Payment Standards be approved and adopted: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the Payment Standards  for the Cedar Falls Housing Choice Voucher Program be 
adopted, effective November 1, 2018, as noted below:  

Zero Bedroom Units: $   609 
One Bedroom Units: $   728 
Two Bedroom Units: $   919 
Three Bedroom Units: $ 1195 
Four Bedrooms Units: $ 1490 
Units with more than four bedrooms, payment standard is established at 100% of Area 
FMR, as determined by U.S. HUD, as adjusted for unit size.  

 
 ADOPTED this 15th day of October, 2018. 
 
             
       James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC,  
City Clerk 

-129-

Item F.2.j. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 
 

 DATE: October 11, 2018 

SUBJECT: Approval of Asbestos Testing Letter of Agreement for the Northern Cedar 
Falls Flood Buyout Program, Project No. FL-000-2017 

 
 
On August 7, 2017 City Council approved a grant agreement between Iowa Homeland 
Security and Emergency Management and the City of Cedar Falls for the Cedar Falls 
Property Acquisition and Demolition Project. The funding that was approved as part of the 
agreement allowed the City to purchase 13 properties. After the acquisitions were completed 
and the structures removed from the properties, it was realized that the project costs were 
coming in less than what was budgeted. On July 16, 2018, City Council approved a purchase 
offer for the property at 2703 Timothy Street, which was an alternate property on the flood 
buyout list. 
 
The City anticipates closing on this property on October 29, 2018. Once the City acquires the 
property, asbestos testing must occur to determine if any asbestos abatement is needed on 
any of the structures. 
 
Quotes were requested from the below companies for the asbestos testing and clearance 
monitoring services. One quote was received: 
 

 
 

Company Bid for Testing Bid for Re-Inspection Total Bid 
Amount 

Hawkeye 
Environmental $675 $150 per property site 

visit (if required) $825 

Active Thermal 
Concepts Did Not Bid   

Abatement 
Specialties Did Not Bid   

Advanced 
Environmental Did Not Bid   

-131-

Item F.2.k. 



The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Letter of Agreement    
for asbestos testing and clearance monitoring services with Hawkeye Environmental, for 
work at 2703 Timothy Street. This work would be completed within 30 days of issuance of the 
Notice to Proceed. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact the Community Development 
Department. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
  

-132-

Item F.2.k. 



LETTER OF AGREEMENT 

Project §404 Hazard Mitigation Property Acquisition Demolitions Program
For the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Contractor: Hawkeye Environmental 
Address: 814 Wood Lily Road 
City: Solon Iowa 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this __1Q_!!! _day of October , 20�, is by and between the 
City of Cedar Falls , Iowa, (hereinafter called "the City''), and Hawkeye 
Environmental , (hereinafter called the Contractor). 

WHEREAS, the City requires asbestos survey work and asbestos clearing monitoring work to be 
performed in connection with the above identified project; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor certifies to be qualified and willing to perform the work required in 
accordance with the standards and criteria hereinafter set forth, and pursuant to the terms, 
provisions and conditions hereof, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls did issue a Request for Bids for the aforementioned project, 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls did receive Bids for the aforementioned project, and made 
the award of the project work to Hawkeye Environmental , and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls does hereby wish to establish a contractual relationship for 
the performance and completion of the aforementioned work, 

NOW, THEREFORE, both parties hereto do enter into this contract and agree as follows: 

The Contractor shall furnish all tools, equipment, labor and materials for the proposed survey 
work in accordance with all applicable plans, specifications, codes and ordinances of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 

The Contractor will be required to hold and maintain a valid Iowa Asbestos Inspector License 
and a valid Certificate of Liability Insurance for the duration of the project. The Contractor must 
also remain in good standing as a Registered Contractor through Iowa Workforce Development. 

The Contractor will be paid contract price for all items satisfactorily completed. Such payment 
shall be full compensation for completion of the work, for complying with all laws, rules, 
regulations, and ordinances, including safety, and for furnishing all material, equipment, tools 
and labor to complete the work, in accord with the plans and these specifications listed in the 
signed and awarded Request for Bids received by the City on October 8, 2018 from the 
Contractor. All documents issued by the City in conjunction with this project, including the 

-133-

Item F.2.k. 



-134-

Item F.2.k. 



-135-

Item F.2.k. 



-136-

Item F.2.k. 



-137-

Item F.2.k. 



-138-

Item F.2.k. 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 1, 2018.
	[181001MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Old Business:
	1. Pass Ordinance #2932, granting a partial property tax exemption to Standard Distribution Co. for construction of a warehouse addition at 317 Savannah Park Drive, upon its second consideration.
	[2932-PPTE Standard Dist.docx]

	2. Pass Ordinance #2933, amending Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property located in the southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue from A-1, Agricultural District, and placing the same in HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, subject to certain conditions, upon its second consideration.
	[1-2933-Rezone A1 to HWY1.docx]
	[2-2933-Ord Attachment-Signed Conditional Zoning Agreement 09-25-18.pdf]

	3. Pass Ordinance #2934, amending Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property located at the north end of Lakeshore Drive from A-1, Agricultural District, and placing the same in R-1, Residence District, upon its second consideration.
	[2934-Rezone A1 to R1.docx]


	F. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of October 1, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Overman Park Neighborhood Association Presentation. 
(2) North Cedar Neighborhood Association Presentation.
(3) South Main and Greenhill Corridor Neighborhood Association Presentation.
(4) Bills & Payroll.
	[Comm of the Whole 10 01 18.doc]

	b. Approve the application of Community Main Street (J & M Displays) for a fireworks display permit for November 23, 2018.
	[Holiday Hoopla 2018.docx]

	c. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:
(1) Aldi Inc., 6322 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.
(2) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer - renewal.
(3) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & outdoor service - renewal.
(4) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(5) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - change in ownership.
(6) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - change in ownership.
(7) Just Dough, 6607 University Avenue, Class B beer - new.
	[Liquor Beer 10-15.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Engagement Letter with The Overture Group, LLC to perform recruitment services relative to the position of City Engineer.
	[1-recruiting firm contract council.mem.doc]
	[2-City of Cedar Falls Retained Proposal - 10.4.2018.pdf]

	b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Bookkeeping Services with Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc.
	[1-sturgis falls bookkeeping contract council.mem.doc]
	[2-Sturgis Bookkeeping Agrmt.pdf]

	c. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow property located at 804-804 1/2 Seerley Boulevard.
	[1-Final Assessment Memo.pdf]
	[2-804 Seerley Blvd-Supporting Docs.pdf]

	d. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow property located at 216 Iowa Street.
	[3-216 Iowa Street-Supporting Docs.pdf]

	e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment to Agreement for Animal Services with the Cedar Bend Humane Society relative to pet licensing.
	[1-CC Memo - CBHS Amendment.doc]
	[2-Amendment to CBHS animal services agreement-2018.doc]
	[3-CBHS Agreement-Exhibit A.pdf]

	f. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Lease of Artwork with Dallas Guffey relative to placement of a sculpture in the City right-of-way at 311 Main Street, as requested by the Cedar Falls Public Art Committee and the Art & Culture Board.
	[1-10-2018 memo to Mayor-Guffey extension.pdf]
	[2-Guffey.pdf]

	g. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Teamsters Union, Local No. 238 relative to earning compensatory time.
	[MOU Teamsters 238.pdf]

	h. Resolution approving and accepting a Partial Release of Real Estate Mortgage, a Warranty Deed and a Temporary Easement, in conjunction with the Center Street Recreational Trail Project.
	[1. Memo-Right of way Acquisition.docx]
	[2.1287_001.pdf]

	i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of one Owner Purchase Agreement and two Tenant Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting one Owner's Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project.
	[1.council memo on w 1st street ROW acquisitions 9-13-18.docx]
	[2.1327_001.pdf]
	[3.W1stPropAcq181015.pdf]

	j. Resolution approving and adopting payment standards for the City's Section 8 Rental Assistance Program, to become effective November 1, 2018.
	[1-Memo to Council -  Payment Standards 2018_10-2-2018.final.x.doc]
	[2-Resolution_Payment Standards 2019.docx]

	k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Letter of Agreement for asbestos testing and clearance monitoring services with Hawkeye Environmental relative to the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program.
	[1_Memo Approving Asbestos Testing Agreement 10-15-18.docx]
	[2_City of Cedar Fallls Letter of Agreement.pdf]



	G. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	H. City Council Referrals.
	I. City Council Updates.
	J. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental body would receive for that property, following Public Forum.
	K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	L. Adjournment.
	c. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow property locatedat 804-804 1/2 Seerley Boulevard.d. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow property locatedat 216 Iowa Street.



